Regular Council Meeting
Monday, March 10, 2025
7:00 pm

We acknowledge that our gathering takes place on the unceded and traditional territory of the indigenous
peoples of that region as well as the Metis people whose footprints have marked these lands.

AGENDA
1. Call to Order

2. Land Acknowledgement
3. Adoption of Agenda: March 10, 2025 Regular Council Meeting Agenda.

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT the Reqular Council Meeting agenda be adopted.

4. Adoption of the Minutes
a. February 24, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4-6

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT the Regular Council Meeting Minutes of January 27, 2025 be adopted.

5. Correspondence for Information

a. LGMA Newsletter Page 7-9
b. Lind Creek Dam Safety Inspection Report Page 10-43
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT Council accept items a. to b. as correspondence for information.

6. Correspondence for Action

a. Letter to UBCM Member Municipalities re Support for
Resolution - Infrastructure Support for Specified
Municipalities — Housing Supply Act Page 44
RECOMMENDATION:

THAT Council supports the City of Abbotsford's resolution, "that the Union of BC Municipalities work with the
Government of BC to establish and provide long-term, stable and predictable infrastructure funding for
municipalities to address the challenges around the introduction of the 2023 Housing Supply Act, which permits
increased housing densities and puts strain on existing municipal infrastructure”, at the upcoming AKBLG
Convention (if discussed there), in advance of the UBCM Convention this fall.

City of Greenwood —Regular Council Meeting Agenda — Monday, March 10, 2025



7. Committee Reports WBCF February 11%", 2025 Meeting Minutes Page 45-46
8. Councillor’'s Reports

9. Mayor's Report

10. Administrator’s Report

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT Council accept the reports as information.

11. Financial Report  First Quarter Financials - April 14%, 2025
12. New and Unfinished Business

a) Licence to Use and Occupy — Boundary Metis Association Page 47-50
RECOMMENDATION:
THAT Council approve the Boundary Metis Association a Licence to Use and Occupy permit for the Barbra Diane
Colin Memorial Park for a community Spring Equinox Event being held from 10:00 — 3:00 on March, 22, 2025.
13. Bylaws
14. Notice of Motions

15. Question Period

Excerpt from Council Procedures Bylaw 1018, Section 19

Immediately prior to the adjournment of every regular meeting of Council, questions, but not
statements, relating to matters dealt with at that meeting may be directed to Council by members of
the public then present. All such questions shall be directed to the Mayor, and will where possible and
appropriate be answered by the Mayor or a member designated by the Mayor.

The Mayor may refer any question or enquiry to the Chief Administrative Officer to look into

at a future time.

A maximum period of 15 minutes shall be provided for considering questions from members
of the public, however that maximum may be extended to 30 minutes with the unanimous
consent of all Council members present.

16. In-Camera

THAT: Pursuant to Section 90(1) of the Community Charter, this subject matter being considered re-lates

to one or more of the following:
90(1)(e) the acquisition, disposition or expropriation of land or improvements, if the council con-siders

that disclosure could reasonably be excepted to harm the interests of the municipality;

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT Council move into In-camera at X:XX under section 90(1) of the Community Charter.

City of Greenwood — Regular Council Meeting Agenda -Monday, March 10, 2025



17. Adjournment

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT the Regular Council Meeting be adjourned at XX:XX pm.

City of Greenwood — Regular Council Meeting Agenda -Monday, March 10, 2025



CALL TO ORDER

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

(33-25)

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

(34-25)

CORRESPONDENCE
FOR INFORMATION

(35-25)
COMMITTEE REPORTS

COUNCILLOR’S REPORTS

CITY OF GREENWOOD
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held February 24, 2025

Mayor J. Bolt

Councillors: C. Huisman, C. Rhodes, G. Shaw.
Chief Administrative Officer: Dean Trumbley
Corporate Officer: Brooke McCourt

Attended Virtually: Councillor J. McLean
Mayor Bolt called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

Acknowledgment that our gathering Takes place on the unceded and
traditional territory of the indigenous peoples of that region as well as
the Metis people whose footprints have marked these lands.

Moved/Seconded

THAT the February 24, 2025 regular council agenda be adopted as

amended to remove item 11.(a) “Licence to Use and Occupy

Application — Lions Park” under New & Unfinished Business.
Carried

Moved/Seconded
THAT the minutes of February 10, 2025 Regular Council Meeting be

adopted.

Carried
Moved/Seconded
THAT Council accept correspondence a. to b. as information.
Carried

Clint Huisman: Verbal report presented.

CJ Rhodes: Verbal report presented.

Jessica McLean: Verbal report presented.

Gerry Shaw: Verbal report presented.

MAYOR’S REPORT: Verbal report presented.

Greenwood City Council — Regular Council Meeting Minutes — Monday, February 24t 2025

Page 1




ADMINISTRATION REPORT: Verbal report presented — On file.

Moved/Seconded
THAT Council accepts the reports as information.
(36-25) Carried
SECOND QUARTER
FINANCIAL REPORT Next report — March.
NEW AND UNFINISHED
BUSINESS
a. Memo to Council — Moved/ Seconded
TUP — 355 Government THAT Council issue a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) for the use of
Ave a recreational vehicle (RV) as a temporary dwelling at 355 North
Government Avenue in Greenwood, BC for a term of up to one (1)
year, commencing on April 1st, 2025.
(37-25) Carried
b. Memo to Council - Moved/Seconded
Support for Regional THAT Council supports to find out further information on how the
(RDKB) Asset proposed regional asset management shared service model would
Management Staffing be employed, including financial implications.
AND THAT Council is only exploring the opportunity for
Regional District Kootenay’s Boundary’s involvement, as part of
the Asset Management Leadership Team, in the developing of City
of Greenwood’s Asset Management Program which is being fully
implemented in 2026.
AND FURTHER THAT this is not a commitment to participate in
the proposed Regional Asset Management staffing approach.
(38-25) Carried
c. Memo to Council - Fire = Moved/Seconded
Service Business Plan—  THAT Council approves the recommended increased tax
2025 Tax Requisition requisition for fire service at 1.3086 per $1,000.00 of assessed

value.

Councillor Shaw discussed his concerns with the Budgetary
portions of the Business Plan, having not touched on reserves
within the plan, wages vs. stipend pay and concerns surrounding
the partnership that the City has with RDKB and the potential for
them to deny the increase on their end.

Councillor Rhodes discussed being in support with having an
increase as it is needed but concerns surrounding the impact this
will have on our community.

Contracted CFO James Sexton attended to answer questions and
concerns surrounding what reserves the City would potentially use

Greenwood City Council — Regular Council Meeting Minutes — Monday, February 24", 2025
Page 2



if Council wanted to accept the full increase amount but only
charge 50% to residents this year and reserves cover the rest.
Contracted CFO also spoke on decision based on level of service,
and what that looks like for what the communities needs are.

Mayor and council spoke on having further discussions come
Budget allocation time, as well as having a workshop on
development of the Business Plan that was presented.

(39-25) Carried
Moved/Seconded
THAT Council approve the 2025 Fire Service Business Plan.
(40-25) Carried
Moved/Seconded

THAT Council direct staff to incorporate the proposed 2025 Fire
Service Business Plan budget into the 2025 PRELIMINARY

BUDGET.
(41-25) Carried
BYLAWS Council Procedures Moved/ Seconded
Bylaw Amendment THAT Council give Fourth and Final Readings of the City of
Bylaw No. 1027, 2025 Greenwood’s Council Procedures Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No.
1027, 2025.

Opposed: Mayor Bolt
Councillor Rhodes

(42-25) Carried
NOTICE OF MOTIONS None.

QUESTION

PERIOD None.

IN-CAMERA None.
ADJOURNMENT Mayor Bolt Moved

THAT Council adjourn the Regular Council Meeting at 8:25 p.m.

(43-25) Carried
Mayor

Certified Correct

Corporate Officer

Greenwood City Council — Regular Council Meeting Minutes — Monday, February 24™ 2025
Page 3



Brooke McCourt

From: Local Government Management Association of BC <office@lgma.ca>
Sent: March 3, 2025 11:04 AM

To: frontdesk.greenwoodcity@shaw.ca

Subject: LGMA Job Circular, News, and Program Updates - Week of March 3, 2025

If you have trouble viewing this email, click herefg

Professional Development Partners:

LIDSTONE & COMPANY @@ t/aRT MeDANNOLD STUART YOUNG ANDERSON

Travel Grant Partner:

LIDSTONE & COMPANY

LGMA Newsletter:

Week of March 3, 2025

Exciting news - the LGMA is opening a time capsule
from 1999 at our 2025 Annuat Conference in
Kelowna! Join us in discovering what was preserved
25 years ago to commemorate the cornerstone of
local government before launching the new
millennium. Take part in creating a new time capsule
atthe 2025 annual conference and leave a piece of
your community’s legacy for future generations to
discover in 2050.

What do you believe represents your community,
local government, or the sector during these times?
From a photo of your new rec centre, a news article
about a recent public engagement session, to a
personal item that captures the spirit of your team,
we’re excited to gather items for the new time
capsule that you find memorable and will give future
generations a glimpse into the past.




As an extra incentive, there will be three prizes of $50 towards a future LGMA program, with one
winner in each of the following categories:

- Fan favourite
- Best historical submission
- Best future thinking submission

Don’t miss your chance to be part of BC local government history that is showcased to future
generations! Find more information on our websiie, including terms and conditions, and how to
apply. Spaces are limited. Submit your proposed itermn by April 18.

LGMA Team Members pictured from left to right: Adrian Paradis, Stacey Fujikawa, Ana

Fuller, Randee Platz, and Shannon Gustafsson.

CivicInfo BC & LGMA

BC Local Government Job Board

CURRENT OPPORTUNITIES

LGMA Training:

Peer Connection Lunch Opportunities
Corporate Officers - April 16

CAOs = April 25

HR Practitioners - May 5

Two cohorts available!

Bylaw Drafting Online Course

April 15 - 29

Two half-day virtual workshops!
Approving Officers’ Workshop
May8-9

Save the Date!
Communication Professionals Forum
June 10, Kelowna

Learn at your own pace!

FOI, Privacy, and Records and
Information Management On-Demand
Training

Ask the Experts session November 4

LGMA Manuals Now Available!

Additional News and Training:

Local Government Leadership Academy
Leadership Forum Registration Now
Open

March 12-14

Capacity building for local governments
Climate Ready Infrastructure Service
Brand new and free-to-access

LGMA Membership Renewal:

2025 Membership is now live!
Renew early to be entered into the
Membership Renewal Draw!

LGMA Chapter News:

RM /WKB LGMA Joint Chapter Conference
TOLMGA Chapter Conference

VILGMA Chapter Conference

See alt News & Opportunities



Aspiring Leaders, Meet Your Instructors!
Supervisor Essentials April 2, 9, and 16!

Aspiring to step into a supervisory role in the coming years, or
looking to enhance your leadership skills to lead more
confidently in your current position? The Supervisor
Essentials course is tailored just for you. Meet Kathy Andrews
and Molly McGuire, the instructors of the course.

Kathy Andrews is the Managing Director of Cinga Leadership
and Learning and is an accomplished coach, facilitator, and
organizational development and leadership consultant. Molly
McGuire is an organizational development program manager
who is enthusiastic about optimizing leadership and
employee engagement in organizations.

Join fellow local government professionals and benefit from their extensive expertise. There’s no
better time than now to develop new leadership skills and advance your career in locat
government! Read Kathy and Molly’s Tull instructor spotlight on our website, and register for the

Connect with the LGMA

LGMA

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION
OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

710A - 880 Douglas Street, Victoria, British Columbia V8W 2B7, Canada



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection

Presented To:

Dated: February 2025
Ecora File No.: 220439



Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

o

200 - 2045 Enterprise Way, Kelowna, BC V1Y 975
| P: 250.469.9757 | F: 250469 9757 |



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 { February 2025 | Version 0

Presented To:

City of Greenwood
202 S Government Street
Greenwood, BC VOH 1J0

c/-

ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd
1952 Columbia Avenue

Rossland, BC VOG 1Y0

Prepared by:

1/

f
/
[

"It /1A j];“""

2025-02-28
Trevor Nikodym, E.I.T. Date
Junior Dam Safety Engineer
250.215.8881
Trevor.nikodym@ecora.ca
ENGINEERS AND GEQSCIENTISTS GF BRITISH COLUMBIA
Reviewed and Approved by:
PP Y permiTTO PRACTICE #/1 001040
cececk, /
“CeBB I
h
L-3
é‘ ECORAENG/MNEERING &ENVIRONMENTAL LTD.
S g RESPONSIBLE REGISTRANT: M. J, Laws, PEng.
2 Lygm® ,,Q }
PG TNES,” 2625- -28
222222775025-02-28 d2
2025-02-28 DATE
Michael J. Laws, P.Eng. Date
Principal Dams and Geotechnics
250.469.9757
Michael.laws@ecora ca
Version Control and Revision History
Version Date Prepared By Reviewed By Approved By Notes/Revisions

0 2025-02-28 TN MJL | MJL Issued For Use
' |
|

ro



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version Q

Limitations of Report

This report and its contents are intended for the sole use of the City of Greenwood, their agents and the
applicable regulatory authorities. Ecora Engineering & Environmental Ltd. (Ecora) does not accept any
responsibility for the accuracy of any data, analyses, or recommendations contained or referenced in the
report when the report is used or relied upon by any Party other than the City of Greenwoad, their agents. the
applicable regulatory authorities or for any Project other than that described in this report. Any such
unauthorized use of this report is at the sole risk of the user.

Where Ecora submits both electronic file and hard copy versions of reports. drawings, and ather project-
related documents, only the signed and/or sealed versions shall be considered final and legally binding. The
original signed and/or sealed version archived by Ecora shall be deemed to be the original for the Project.
Both electronic file and hard copy versions of Ecora's deliverables shall not, under any circumstances, no
matter who owns or uses them. be altered by any party except Ecora.

Ecora's General Conditions are provided in Appendix of this repart.

ro



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection

Table of Contents

File Na: 220439 | February 2025 | Verston 0

1. INErOAUGCHION < e eee e e e ST RS S R VA R e AT 1
1.1 GENEIAL ..o e A A T S S K SO R 1
1.2 SCOPE OF WOIK. ...t 1
1.3 Dam and Watershed DesCription ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e 2
I D710 (I Vool = 1= 1< ST PR e P PO ST SRECTP SO 3
1.5  Activities During the Review Period ... 3
2. Dam Safety INSPECON ;. possssssssissaimssss s isiiosusssads s smmieaits s 4
2.1 Key ODbSErvatioNs. .. ci.sessimms e vbin ssinriisssssss s 555t 15 saanesatos s besssosse nrssesssenssss 4
3. Consequences Classification Review ..., 4
3.1 Regulatory RequiremMeNntS.......c.ooooiiiiiiiiiiii et 4
B2 GENETAL e R R S S R R R 5
3.3  Downstream ConSIAerations . oo iee et ittt s 6
4. Minimum Frequency of Safety Activities.............oooo, 6
5. Findings and Recommendations ..., 7
List of Tables in Text
Table 4.1 Schedule 2 of the BC Dam Safety ReguIationNS ... i e 7
Table 6.1 Summary of Priority Ranking System ... .8
List of Figures in Text
Figure 1.1 Lind Creek Dam LOCAtON ...... sxswmss iy et soss e s i S 0 s 5o 53 (55 S5 s s eos s s S LS eh g b reswenay
Figure 1.3a  Storage-Elevation Curve for Lind Creek Dam e eeamn e ramene tam e R RS R S TR AT A R S S
Figure 1.3b  Approximate Upstream Drainage Area of Lind Creek Dam ... RPN
Figure 3.1 Application of the Regulation to Dams in BC Graph ..o e 5

e



Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

Appendix Sections

Figures

Figure 1.1 Site Location

Photographs

Photo 1 Lind Creek Dam Access Trail in Winter

Photo 2 Dam Crest with Trees on Upstream and Downstream Face
Photo 3 Upstream Side of Concrete Spillway Structure

Photo 4 Downstream Side of Concrete Spillway Structure with Woody Debris in Outlet Channel
Photo 5 Spillway Outlet Channel with Ice

Photo 6 Frozen Spillway Inlet Channel

Photo 7 Emergency Signage Near Spillway Structure

Photo 8 Emergency Signage

Photo 9 Northern Reservoir Siope Photo 1

Photo 10 Northern Reservoir Slope Photo 2

Appendices

Appendix A Consequence Classification Criteria
Appendix B Inundation Mapping Example
Appendix C General Conditions

ro



Lind Creex Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection

Acronyms and Abbreviations

CDA Canadian Dam Association

DSl Dam Safety Inspection

DSO Dam Safety Officer

Ecora Ecora Engineering & Environmental Ltd.
EDGM Earthquake Design Ground Mation

IDF Inflow Design Flood

LOL Loss Of Life

NAD North America Datum

PSR Plan Submission Report

The City City of Greenwood

UTM Universal Transverse Mercator

WLRS Ministry of Water, Lands and Resotrce Stewardship

ro

File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

o v



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

1. Introduction

1.1 General

Ecora Engineering & Environmental Ltd. (Ecora) was retained by ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd.

(ISL) on behalf of the City of Greenwood (the City) to undertake the 2025 Dam Safety Inspections (DSI) of the
Lind Creek Dam (Dam File No.: D210139-00) located approximately 1 km south of Greenwood, BC. The dam has
a current consequence classification of “High” and a dam risk level of “2a — Caution”. It is understood that the
water license governing the dam was abandoned in 1997 and the dam has not been decommissioned or
deactivated. Ecora is currently providing engineering services for the development of a Plan Submission Report to
decommission the dam. The previous 2023 Lind Creek Dam Safety Inspection, dated April 30, 2024, was
completed by Ecora.

This report presents the results of the Dam Safety Inspection performed on February 12, 2025 by Michael J.
Laws, P.Eng. The report includes key observations, findings, and recommendations. A photograph log illustrating
the condition of the dam at the time of the site inspection is attached at the end of this report.

A map indicating the location of the dam is shown in Figure 1.1 below.

Figure 1.1 Lind Creek Dam Location

1.2 Scope of Work

Ecora provided the following engineering services as part of the 2024 Dam Safety Inspection of Lind Creek Dam:
. Review of any additional or new background information including the 2023 DS
. Undertake a site inspection and record general observations of Lind Creek Dam;
= Undertake a review of the dam consequences classification; and

. Prepare a report to summarize the findings of the inspection and to provide recommendations
for addressing any deficiencies identified.

ro !



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version O

1.3 Dam and Watershed Description

Lind Creek Dam is an earthfill embankment dam situated along Lind Creek, located approximately 1 km south of
Greenwood, BC at Map Grid (NAD 83) co-ordinates 377776.66 m E, 5437210.08 m N (UTM Zone 11U). An open
channel spillway with an overflow concrete weir is situated along the left abutment of the dam. Outflows from Lind
Creek Dam follow Lind Creek for approximately 1.2 km before joining Boundary Creek. No instrumentation is
currently installed at Lind Creek Dam.

Lind Creek Dam has a maximum height of approximately 9.5 m and is approximately 39.8 m long as per the 2023
ISL topographic survey. An open channel spillway is located at the left abutment. The dam has a total storage
volume of approximately 3,544 m3 at the dam crest elevation (831.5 m), as confirmed by a bathymetric survey
conducted in October 2023. The storage-elevation curve for Lind Creek Dam is shown in Figure 1.3a below. This
confirms previous DS| assumptions that the total dam storage is <10,000 m? of water. The dam is its current
configuration was constructed in 1966 based on a response to a change of works application issued by the
Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations dated January 21, 2022 (MFLNRO, 2022). Prior to
1966, the configuration and condition of the dam is mostly unknown. The only background information that exists
referencing the dam during that period is water license F003077 which states that the dam was established in
1905, modified in 1966, and abandoned in 1997.

Storage - Elevation Curve

832
Dam Crest =831.5m

831 —

Spillway Sill = 830 27 m /

830 o

829

Elevation {m)

828

827

826
0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

Volume (m3)

Figure 1.3a Storage-Elevation Curve for Lind Creek Dam

o



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

The drainage area upstream of Lind Creek Dam is estimated to be 19.44 km?. The watershed is primarily heavily
forested, with several small agricultural lots. Based on regional hydrometric gauge stations, peak flows are
expected to primarily occur in the spring, between April and June. The maximum basin elevation is approximately
1672 m, with a mean elevation of 1281 m. The approximate boundary of the watershed is shown in Figure 1.3b
below

Figure 1.3b Approximate Upstream Drainage Area of Lind Creek Dam

1.4 Dam Access

The dam can be accessed from a trailhead located adjacent to 232 Everett Avenue. Following an unnamed trail
for approximately 750 m and the dam is located along the right-hand side. The trail has a minimum width of 2.1 m
and a maximum width of 4.0 m. Debris and terrain prevent vehicle access to the dam year round.

1.5  Activities Completed During the Review Period

The following activities have been performed on Lind Creek Dam since the previous DSI:

= A bathymetric survey of the reservoir and topographic survey of the dam was performed in
October 2023 enabling the confirmation of the reservoir volume;

. Ecora undertook the dam breach analysis and inundation mapping of Lind Creek Dam;
= Environmental overview assessment for the decommissioning of Lind Creek Dam;

. Conducted a site inspection an February 12%, 2025; and

ro 3



Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safely Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

. Ecora has been developing the Plan Submission Report (PSR) for the decommissioning of Lind
Creek Dam for submission to the regulator in Spring 2025

2. Dam Safety Inspection

On February 12, 2025, Michael J. Laws, P.Eng. (Ecora), completed an inspection of Lind Creek Dam. The
weather at the time of inspection was sunny and approximately -10° C. The dam inspection consisted of a visual
inspection of each dam component, including dam embankment, spillway, and outlet systems. A cursory
inspection was performed of the downstream channel and the reservoir.

Aerial photographs of the dam were taken using a DJI Mini 2 drone and included in the photolog appended to the
end of this report.

2.1 Key Observations

The following key observations were noted during the site inspection:
® At the time of inspection, approximately 15 cm of snow cover over the dam was present;
. Reservoir elevation at time of inspection was approximately at full pool,

. Ice cover of reservoir, spillway inlet channel, spillway structure, and spillway outlet channel
(Photos 3 — 6);

B Debris was noted throughout the spillway cutlet channel (Photo 4);
*  Audible flow through spillway structure under the ice cover,

. No trees displaced on either upstream or downstream of dam since previous site inspection;

= Access fo the dam is provided by a trail on the northern bank of Lind Creek that originates
adjacent to 232 Everett Avenue At the time of inspection, trail covered in snow (Photo 1);

" Reservair slopes have no notable changes, or additional fallen trees, since the previous site
inspection (Photos 9 & 10); and

bl Multiple emergency contact signage located near concrete spiliway structure (Photos 7 & 8).

A detailed photograph log is attached to the end of this report.

3. Consequences Classification Review

3.1 Regulatory Requirements

Under the BC Dam Safety Regulations, dams may be fully, or in part, exempt from the regulation depending on
the Live Storage Capacity and the Dam Height. Figure 3.1 below shows a chart available through the Government
of British Columbia's Dam Safety Section that summarizes the requirements to be considered a small dam. In the
case of Lind Creek Dam, the estimated reservoir capacity is <10,000 m?, however the maximum dam height is
>7.5 m, therefore the entire regulation is applicable.

ro :



Lind Creex Dam
2024 Dam Safety inspecton File No: 220439 | February 2025 § Version 0

olicztion of the Regulation 1o Dams i Sritish Columbia

‘dams that fall in the blue area,
EXCEPT..

Dam Height

LOW Consequence Classification:
dams that fall below the dashed
line are EXEMPT from PART 3

1.0m st 2

1000 000 -}

Figure 3.1 Application of the Regulation to Dams in BC Graph

3.2 General

A consequences classification system has been developed by the Canadian Dam Association (CDA, 2007). Note
that the consequences are incremental to those that would have occurred in the same event without failure of the
dam. The CDA (2007) defines incremental consequence of failure as:

“The incremental consequences or damage that a dam failure might inflict on upstream areas,
downstream areas or on the dam itself, over and above any losses or damage that may have occurred in
the same event. or conditions had the dam not failed".

The BC Dam Safety Regulation 40/2016 (February 29, 2016) and associated amendments, and the 2007 CDA
Dam Safety Review Guidelines (2013 Edition) provide conseguence classification criteria. As per the BC Dam
Safety Regulation 40/2016 and the CDA 2007 Dam Safety Guidelines (2013 Edition), the following consequences
of failure criteria are considered during the consequence classification evaluation:

ecora :



Lind Creek Dam

2021 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

s Loss Of Life (LOL);
. Infrastructure and economic losses; and
. Environmental and cultural losses

The BC Dam Safety Regulation and CDA describe five consequences categories: “Low”, “Significant”, "High",
“Very High" and "Extreme”. These consequences categories are applied to establish guidelines for some of the
design parameters for a dam, such as the Inflow Design Flood (IDF) and the Earthquake Design Ground Motion
(EDGM). Additionally. the consequence classification determines the required standard of care expected of the
dams’ owner(s).

The current consequence classification for Lind Creek Dam is "High”.

Updated dam breach and inundation modelling was not completed as part of this assignment

3.3 Downstream Considerations

The dam is located above the small unincorporated community of Anaconda located just outside of the City of
Greenwood's city limits. The distance between the dam and the downstream community is approximately 750 m.
Notable infrastructure between the dam and Boundary Creek includes:

" Water intake approximately 600 m downstream. Water licenses associated with the intake
indicate domestic and irrigation purposes. The licensees are private individuals.

. Everett Avenue approximately 750 m downstream.

. Butte Avenue approximately 850 m downstream

. Crowsnest Highway (Highway 3) approximately 930 m downstream.

= Tacoma Avenue approximately 1 km downstream.

" Kettle Valley Rail Trail approximately 1.1 km downstream.

. Several residential buildings are in close proximity to the creek between 700 m and 1100 m
downstream.

A review of satellite imagery was undertaken to review any changes within the downstream area between the
previous DSI and February 1%, 2025, that could result in changes to the consequence classification. Based on the
review, no new infrastructure has been developed downstream.

Ecora undertook a dam breach analysis and inundation mapping of Lind Creek Dam as part of the ongoing
development of the PSR package for the decommissioning of Lind Creek Dam. Based on the assessment of the
loss criteria summarized in Section 3.2 of this report, it was recommended that a consequence classification
rating of “Very High” be assigned to Lind Creek Dam due to the potential infrastructure impacts in Anaconda,
notably Highway 3. The flood hazard rating map for the PMF — Failure Event is appended in Appendix B. All
inundation maps and methodologies utilized for the dam breach and inundation mapping are detailed in the report
Dam Breach Analysis & Inundation Mapping of Lind Creek Dam (Ecora, 2024).

4, Minimum Frequency of Safety Activities

The BC Dam Safety Regulation (BC Reg. 40/2016) provides recommended minimum frequency of dam safety
activities as provided in Table 4.1 below. The surveillance activities should follow at minimum the " Very High"
classification recommendations going forward.

ra 6



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection

Table 4.1

Column 1

Activity

Requirements under Part 2

Column 2

Extreme
Classification

Schedule 2 of the BC Dam Safety Regulations

Column 3

Column 4

Column §

Frequency of Activity

Very High
Classification

High

Classification

Significant

Classification

File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

Column 6

Low
Classification

to DSO.

1 Redetermine classification of | Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually
dam and, if necessary,
submit to DSO written notice
of proposed new
classification.

Requirements under Part 3

2 Conduct site surveillance. Weekly unless | Weekly unless | Weekly unless | Monthly Quarterty’

otherwise' otherwise’ otherwise® unless!
specified in specified in specified in otherwise
the OMS the OMS the OMS specified in
manual. manual. manual. the OMS
manual.

3 Conduct formal inspection Semi-annually | Annually Annually Annually Annually

4 Test operation of: Annually Annually Annually Annually Annually
(a) mechanical components uniess unless unless unless
of dam; and otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise
(b) electrical and specified in specified in specified in specified in
communication equipment. the OMS the OMS the OMS the OMS

manual. manual. manual. manual.

5 Collect readings from Annually Annually Annually Annually If and when
instrumentation and analyze | unless unless unless unless required by a
and interpret the readings. otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise dam safety

specified in specified in specified in specified in officer.
the OMS the OMS the OMS the OMS
manual. manual manual. manual.

6 Review contact information Annually Annually Annually Annually Not applicable
in DEP, revise if necessary
and report to DSO.

7 Review emergency contact Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable | Not applicable | Annually
information and, if
necessary, revise and submit
revision to DSO.

8 Review OMS manual and Every 7 years | Every 7 years | Every 10 Every 10 Not applicable
DEP, revise if necessary and years years
report to DSO.

9 Ensure dam safety review Every 7 years | Every 10 Every 10 Not applicable | Not applicable
carried out and submit report years years

1

S.

Table.

The frequency of visual inspections may be reduced if provided for in the OMS manual

Findings and Recommendations

Each recommendation has been given a priority ranking (Low, Medium, High or Very High) based on the following

ro




Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 { Version 0

Table 6.1 Summary of Priority Ranking System

Priority Timeframe  Severity Complexity Description

= —

] Severity is significant for continued dam safety

Within 1 year Simple Solution is simple to implement.

Significant

T Either severity is significant and requires additional
High Within 3 years study before implementation or is of moderate
importance and is simple to implement.

Either recommendation is of moderate severity and
Medium Within 5 years Moderate requires additional study or is of low severity and is
simpie to implement.

Considered to be minor in severity with a modest
Low Within 7 years Minor Difficult amount of complexity, or modest in severity with a
difficult amount of complexity

— - Modest

A summary of the recommendations resulting from the February 12, 2025, Dam Safety Inspection, with priority in
parathesis, are:

. It is recommended that the dam consequence classification is increased to “Very High” due to
the potential impacts to Highway 3. until such time that the dam can be decommissioned. (Very

High)

= The overflow spillway should be kept open and free of debris to ensure the dam can pass high
inflow events until the dam can be decommissioned or deactivated. (Very High)

= The dam should be inspected on a weekly basis through the upcoming freshet to ensure any
issues are noted early (ex. seepage, sloughing, or debris floods). Written records should be

kept of the inspections and any maintenance. (Very High)

= A Plan Submission Report (PSR) should be submitted to the Dam Safety Officer (DSO)
outlining the decommissioning of the dam. It is understood that Ecora is developing the PSR for
submission in Spring 2025. (High)

«  Vegetation clearing should occur following the melting of snow and ice. Trees should be left in
place until the dam can be decommissioned as removing mature trees will likely result in the
weakening of the dam embankment. (Medium)

It should be noted that several of the recommendations are carried over from the previously completed DSI as
they have not yet been addressed by the dam owner.

ra



Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

References

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 1997. Dam Safety Guidelines.

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2002 Dam Safety Review Workshop, 2002 CDA Conference, Victoria, British
Columbia.

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2007. Dam Safety Guidelines 2013 Edition.

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2007. Technical Bulletin — Dam Safety Analysis and Assessment.
Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2007. Technical Builetin — Geotechnical Considerations for Dam Safety.
Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2007. Technical Bulletin — Hydrotechnical Considerations for Dam Safety.

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2007. Technical Bulletin — Inundation, Consequences and Classification for
Dam Safety.

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2007. Technical Bulletin — Seismic Hazard Considerations for Dam Safety
Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2011. Guidelines for Public Safety Around Dams.

Canadian Dam Association (CDA), 2016. Technical Bulletin: Dam Safety Reviews.

Canadian Geotechnical Society, 2006. Canadian Foundation Engineering Manual, 4th Edition.

Government of British Columbia, 2016. Guidance Document to the HSRC Version 1.0 Updated 2016

Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations, 2017, Downstream Consequence of Failure
Classification Interpretation Guideline, Dam Safety Program, Revised March 2017.

United States Bureau of Reclamation, 1988. Downstream Hazard Classification Guidelines, ACER Technical
Memorandum No. 11, U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation, Denver, Colorado.

ro ?



Lind Creek Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection

Figures

Figure 1.0 Site Overview

ecora

File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0



.._c:_.._n.. u £ [ R /D] OGEZLE 1]

}°L @inbi4 N} SUOZ WLM EBB) O¥N

WQ 384D Sy UMBIg poomuaais o A Ellle)
02/10/5202 :3eq

20yl Gl G 9
el S— S

005G+ 2
A hempy
-—— A —
~ .\N A 1S3
| LD '
AIERLNOE
&ﬂ WAL b
’ 2
(TS uopeso] 2
pafold 000 e R EsE T TR N REN e R
poossag (P P
X|uaoyd @. _ Inooiunun_
Iy

St )

et =]

= =

4 ‘,n\ y

Y i

dVIN NOLLYOOT

FLUT 276 et P g 1Y L R iu sy wa

530UI3L3Y 3

[\l

s(2aied (€037 Dgnid

sweang sejly 121epn ysalg

speoy sepy [e1fiq

$9UIT INOILOD WYL WOt
weq yasi3 pun [E1
AUD @

puabe

[

09 ‘A0OOMNITYD
NOLLOAdSNI ALIAVS WVA ¥#202
WVa X330 ani

NOILVYIJO1 LIS




Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

Photographs

Photo 1 Lind Creek Dam Access Trail in Winter

Photo 2 Dam Crest with Trees on Upstream and Downstream Face

Photo 3 Upstream Side of Concrete Spillway Structure

Photo 4 Downstream Side of Concrete Spillway Structure with Woody Debris in Outlet Channel
Photo 5 Spillway Outlet Channel with Ice

Photo 6 Frozen Spiflway Inlet Channel

Phote 7 Emergency Signage Near Spillway Structure

Photo 8 Emergency Signage

Photo 9 Northern Reservoir Slope Photo 1

Photo 10 Northern Reservoir Slope Photo 2

ro

1



Photec - Lind Creek Dam Access Trall in Winter

Photo 2 Dam Crast with Trees on Upstream and Downstream Face

o



File No 220439

February 2025 {ersion O

Photo 3 Upstream Side of Concrete Spillway Structure

Photo 4 Downstream Side of Concrete Spillway Structure with Woody Debris in Outlet Channel

rd



¢ Inspechon

Photo 5 Spillway Outiet Channel with ice

Photo 6 Frozen Spillway Iniet Channel

ro



Lind Creex Dam
2024 Dam Safety Inspection Fiie No 220436 | Fabruary 2025 § Yarsion
Y ¢ i

Photo 7 Emergency Signage Near Spillway Structure

Photo 8 Emergency Signage

ro



Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

o— -

iR
_ el VR LY

P L

Photo 9 Northern Reservoir Slope Photo 1

LS =

>

Photo 10 Northern Reservoir Slope Photo 2

re



Lind Creek Dam

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File Na: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

Appendix A

Consequence Classification Criteria

ro



el

‘a|qissod AlyBly si puny|
Ul uonesuadwan 1o uopeloysal
pUE ‘snjea [zinyno "sBuip|ing
weolubis Buiaey says (p) [BRUSPISS paISpEDdS
0} abewep a1aA8s
SWOS 10 JO UoldNIISap
SWos 10 'saNl|loe}

10 ‘sadeospue] anbjun (2)
‘ss|oeds passbBuepua lo alel (q)

L

‘Jelqey ajyp(im juepodwi [e10JaWLW0d 10 SOOIAISS

10 JelqeYy sslsysl Juepodul (e) 10 uonepodsuel) oyqnd

4INd pue 1esh :Jjo ‘ainjongselul Burosye
000L/L Uusamiag v, | 1edA G/1'Z/) UofjeIONSIBp 10 SSO| Jueoylublg $88S0| 2]Wouo2s ybiH 12Ma} 10 0l cJusuBwIDY ybiH

‘leoioeadwl 1ng ajgissed si pury o B N
Ul Uonesuadwos J0 Uohelo}sal

pue ‘anjea |einjnd
jueoyuBis Buiaey sayis (p) sesie |epuaplsal
0} abewep 81aA9s aWOS

10 JO UONONNISOP BWOS
10 's3l|[10.} [BIDISWILLOD 10

Jo ‘sadeoaspue| anbjun (2)
‘sapads palsbuepus 1o aJes (q)

JON ‘lejiqey sjIp|m [BORLO | saoiales 10 uolepodsuel

1o 1eafk 000'0L/L 10 je}igey saliaysl |eoplo (&) o1qnd ‘alnjonaselul

4IAd pue Jeah pue g/¥'z/L Hle} juepodul) Bujosye
0001/} U2amiag & usamiaq uoljeJola)ap Jo sSO| Juedublg | sasso| olwouods ybly Alap J8Ma} 10 001 gusueuad ubiH Auap

‘alqissodul st pupy

Ul uonesuadLod JO UoNeI0)sal
pUE ‘anjeA |[eJnyno ‘Sesle [ehuspiss.

JueowuBls Buney seys (p)| O @Bewep s19nes swos

10 JO UOJJONJISep SWOos

10 ‘saf|Ioe] |BIOISUWILLOD J0
$80jA13S 10 Uoljepodsuel)

1o ‘sadeospug| anbiun (2)
‘se|oads passbuepua Jo alel (q)

‘Ielgey sjIpIIMm (820U ol|gnd ‘ainjoniselul
39N 10 JeligeY salaysy (edlD () [eanio Bupoaye sasso|
4Nd 10 1eak 000'0L/L :JO uoljelolalap Jo ssof Jofely | 2lwouoda ybily >_mEmbxm_ 00} < gJusueuIad awalixg

(L0025 05) (o0Z vao)
uoion

{L00Z vao B
00]4 ‘b3
b m_w 4 ro__c_ puno.g) (910Z/0¥ "By D) S3s507] (2402/0v "Bax o) (9L0Z/0¥ "By 2d) (9L0z/0v "By 29) |gL0z/0p 'Hay o9)

ubiseg D3 |ednjjnd pue |eJUBWIUOCIIAUT 3117 Jo ss0 ysiy 1e uone|ndod | uoneolIsseld
weq

SolWouo02g

pue ainjanJisedu|
[2Aa

ANliqeqo.id 3ouepaaaxy [enuuy

pooj4 pue ayenbyyreg ubisaq pue euadllD uoieIISSE|) douanbasuod vaod B 910Z/0b uonenbay og 19 siqel

0 uoIsIaA | 520z Alenigad | GEF0ZZ (ON 2l uonoadsul Ajes weq +zZ0z o210 pull



—_— -

1eak Q0L/L 1eah 00L/1L

JI=ET
0001/} pue Jeak
00L/L ussMiag

(L00z vao)
Uuonow
punois

ubisag ®3

ieah
000L/L pue jeak
001/1 usamiag

(2002 vao)
poold
ubisaq mojjuj

ELER
AIngeqold asuepaaaxy [enuuy

0 LaIsIBA | 6Z0zZ Aleniga | 6602z ON 34

elo

‘21B2100J 10 YoM ‘BAI| 0] JB}BYM 'SUOZ LOIEPUNUI 4OBIG-LUEP 8Y) Ul pa1eoo| AlieinBas 1o Ajueulplo st ysu je uoiendod ay | ¢

‘an|eA [einn2|

juesyubis Buiaey says (p)

10 ‘sadeospue| anbjun (2)
‘sal10ads pasabuepua lo alel (q)
‘lengey

ajlIp|im 0 jeyiqey sauaysy (e)
:JO Uol1BlONB}ap JO SSO|
wia)-Buo| ou pue uoljelouslap
10 SSO| W.I8)-HOYS [BLUIUIA
‘a|gissod

AlUb1y si pupy ul uopiesuadwod
10 UOlBI0}Sal PUE ‘BnjeA (einynd
ueayubis Buiaey salls (p)

1o ‘sadedspue| anbjun (2)
‘so10ads passbuepua Jo alel (q)

Jelqey ajiiplim yuepodul

Jo jelqey saliaysy Juepoduw ()|
:Jo Uonelols}ap

10 ss0| Jueoiubis oN

(91.02/0t "By 24) sess0
|ednjjnd pue [ejuatulodIAug

E-1iler4
uogepunul wep sy ulyim
juswdojaaap 10} jenuajod
Bunsixa-a1d ou Ajlenuia
yum ‘Apadold s aumo
wep ay1 0} pajjwi| Aysow
S9SS0| 2ILUOUOID [eLIUIA]

S9IJIAIJOE [BUONESID3]
ul Bupedipiied Jo sanol uolepodsuen uo ybnoiy Buissed ‘Ajueiodwal Buiddols ajdwexs 1o} ‘auoz uolEPUNU} YoeaIg-lWep auj ul AuenBaul pue Ajleuciseado Ajuo aie a|jdosd Z

ssiy Je uoneindod siqeyuap) ou sialeyl L

aimuaApes|u
3|gesasaloun
ubnouyy ueyy
layjo ayl| jo sso|
0 Anngissod oN

LOUON

‘sasodind Aieioduwia) 10}
Alenbaw pue Ajjeuoisesso
pasn suoleao; o} sbewep
10 JO UOHONNS3p 3WoSs

10 'S3N[ID8} [BI0IaWLLIOD 1O
$991A18S 10 uopepodsuel)
alignd *sBulping |enuspissl
pue aimoanJseljul

pajlw Bunosye

$9SS0| DILLIOU0DD MO

(910Z/0v ‘63y Q)
solwuouod3
pue ainjonJisedjuy

a4l Jo ssof s|dynw
10} [BllUS10d MO

Ao Aetodws |

(910z/0¥ "Hay 09) (910zZ/0% "By D1)

9417 Jo ss07]

ysiy je uoljejndod

|

Mo

ueoyubls

(Loozvan s

910z/0v "Boy o9)
uonesisse|d
weq

uonoadsu| Ajsjes weq $zZog %88!0 purn



2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220439 | February 2025 | Version 0

Appendix B

Inundation Mapping Example

ro



Oy SanBld nNu sz LA sMSHSORATVN

BN HE2YD DYD UM pocmae) jo KID U
BO/L L/ EDE 0iRd BEFDEZ 0N ifaid

o —— AT

Kempiinasafns

SHEY, 3
Aippunog; %3310 418y
uoNeE207 ¥
108f0id .- J
H m. FpUOIEUY
POOMUBEAIE o
poomprag

Ladap UOHOMISaP VIGIS s
\s sBuipiing jo apIsino sabuep

TARGARAR By 3 ek 18 0 Sa i
Bl | OPSIG JLIE G ol aUUED 18 FIF ELnRa
Tl

O WEESHELMT0
VR PUERY A

04 'Wva M33UD ANIN
ONIddVIN NOLLVONNNI

IN3IAI FANTIVH diAd - DNLLVY QEVZVH 0014



eeeeeeeeeeee

2024 Dam Safety Inspection File No: 220438 | February 2025 { Version 0

Appendix C

General Conditions

ro



ra Statement of General Conditions — Geotechnical

Standard of Care

Ecora Engineering and Environmental Ltd. (Ecora) has prepared this report in a manner consistent with that level of care and
skill ordinarily exercised by members of the engineering and science professions currently practicing under similar conditions
in the jurisdiction in which the services are provided, subject to the time limits and physical constraints applicable to this report.
No other warranty, expressed ar implied is made

Basis and Use of the Report

This report and the recommendations contained in it are intended for the sole use of Ecora's Client. Ecora does not accept any
responsibility for the accuracy of any of the data, the analyses or the recommendations contained or referenced in the report
when the report is used or relied upon by any party other than Ecora’s Client unless otherwise authorized in writing by Ecora.
Any unauthorized use of the report is at the sole risk of the user. In order to properly understand the suggestions,
recommendations and opinions expressed herein, reference must be made to the whole of the report. We cannot be
responsible for use by any party of portions of the report without reference to the whole report.

This report is subject to copyright and shall not be reproduced either wholly or in part without the prior, written permission of
Ecora. Additional copies of the report, if required. may be obtained upon request

Alternate Report Format

Where Ecora submits both electronic file and hard copy versions of reports, drawings and other project-related documents,
only the signed and/or sealed versions shall be considered final and legally binding. The original signed and/or sealed version
archived by Ecora shall be deemed to be the original for the Project. Both electronic file and hard copy versions of Ecora's
deliverables shall not, under any circumstances, no matier who owns or uses them. be aitered by any party except Ecora.

Soil, Rock and Groundwater Conditions

Classification and identification of soils, rocks and geological units have been based upon commonly accepted systems and
methods employed in professional geotechnical practice. This report contains descriptions of the systems and methods used.
Classification and identification of the type and condition of these materials or units involves judgment, and boundaries
between different soil, rock or geologic types or units may be transitional rather than abrupt. Accordingly. Ecora does not
warrant conditions represented herein as exact, but infers accuracy only to the extent that is common in practice

Soil and groundwater conditions shown in the factual data and described in the report are the observed conditions at the time
of their determination or measurement. Unless otherwise noted. those conditions form the basis of the recommendations in the
report. Groundwater conditions may vary between and beyond reported locations and can be affected by annual, seasonal
and meteorological conditions. The condition of the soil, rock and groundwater may be significantly altered by construction
activities such as traffic, excavation, groundwater level lowering. pile driving, blasting on the site or on adjacent sites.
Excavation may expose the soils to climatic elements such as freeze/thaw and wet /dry cycles and/or mechanical disturbance
which can cause severe deterioration. Unless otherwise indicated the soil must be protected from these changes during
construction.

Environmental and Regulatory Issues

The professional services retained for this project include only the geotechnical aspects of the subsurface conditions at the
site, unless otherwise specifically stated and identified in the report. The presence or implication(s) of possible surface and/or
subsurface contamination resulting from previous activities or uses of the site and/or resuiting from the introduction onto the
site of materials from off-site sources are outside the terms of reference for this project and have not been investigated or
addressed.

Sample Disposal
Ecora will dispose all soil and rock samples for 30 days following issue of this report. Further storage or transfer of samples
can be made at the Client's expense upon written request, otherwise samples will be discarded.




You recently authorized a debit to your account. Here’s a copy of the authorization:

Confirmation Number: 434173256

Payment Processing Date: 03/04/2025

Name: CITY,OF GREENWOOD

Account Number: 3446

Payment Amount: $7,053.72

Payment From: StellerVista Credit Union Checking account ending in 8855

If you have any questions or wish to cancel this payment, please call the number on the back of your card. Cancellation must be completed by 5:00 p.m. CT on the
payment processing date.

Payments scheduled after 5:00 PM CT today will be processed the following business day. Payments scheduled for weekends and holidays are effective on the
scheduled date but will be processed the following business day.



ra Statement of General Conditions — Geotechnical

Construction Services

During construction, Ecora should be retained to perform sufficient and timety observations of encountered conditions to
confirm and document that the subsurface conditions do not materially differ from those interpreted conditions considered in
the preparation of Ecora’s report and to confirm and document that construction activities do not adversely affect the
suggestions, recommendations and opinions contained in Ecora’s report. Adequate field review, observation and testing
during construction are necessary for Ecora to be able to provide letters of assurance. in accordance with the requirements of
many regulatory authorities. In cases where this recommendation is not followed, Ecora’s responsibility is limited to
interpreting accurately the information encountered at the borehole locations, at the time of their initial determination or
measurement during the preparation of the Report.

Job Site Safety

Ecora is responsible only for the activities of our employees on the jobsite. The presence of Ecora’s personnel on the site shall
not be construed in any way to relieve the Client or any contractors on site from their responsibilities for site safety. The Client
acknowledges that he, his representatives, contractors or others retain cantroi of the site and that Ecora never occupy a
position of control of the site. The Client undertakes to inform Ecora of ail hazardous conditions, or other relevant conditions of
which the Client is aware. The Client also recognizes that our activities may uncover previously unknown hazardous conditions
or materials and that such a discovery may result in the necessity to undertake emergency procedures to protect our
employees as well as the public at large and the environment in general.

Changed Conditions and Drainage

Where conditions encountered at the site differ significantly from those anticipated in this report, either due to natural variability
of subsurface conditions or construction activities, it is a condition of this report that Ecora be notified of any changes and be
provided with an opportunity to review or revise the recommendations within this report. Recognition of changed soil and rock
conditions requires experience and it is recommended that Ecora be employed to visit the site with sufficient frequency to
detect if conditions have changed significantly Drainage of subsurface water is commonly required either for temporary or
permanent installations for the project. Improper design or construction of drainage or dewatering can have serious
consequences. Ecora takes no responsibility for the effects of drainage unless specificaily involved in the detailed design and
construction monitoring of the system.

Services of Sub consultants and Contractors

The conduct of engineering and environmental studies frequently requires hiring the services of individuals and companies
with special expertise and/or services which we do not provide. Ecora may arrange the hiring of these services as a
convenience to our Clients. As these services are for the Client's benefit, the Client agrees to hold the Company harmless and
to indemnify and defend Ecora from and against all claims arising through such hiring's to the extent that the Client would incur
had he hired those services directly. This includes responsibility for payment for services rendered and pursulit of damages for
errors, omissions or negligence by those parties in carrying out their work. In particular, these conditions apply to the use of
drilling. excavation and laboratory testing services.




ABBOTSFORD
CELEBRATING Mayor

A—
——r ﬂ w YEARS gg!&ﬁﬁg Ross Siemens
A B B OTS F O R D e Councillors
5 Les Barkman
Kelly Chahal

Patricia Driessen
Simon Gibson
Dave Loewen

February 28, 2025 Patricia Ross
Dave Sidhu

File: 0530-003/0400-60 Mark Warkentin

Via Email

UBCM Member Municipalities

Dear UBCM Members:

Re: Support for Resolution

| am writing on behalf of Abbotsford City Council, requesting favourable consideration and resolutions of
support for our proposed UBCM Resolution for Infrastructure Support for Specified Municipalities —
Housing Supply Act at the upcoming LMLGA Convention, in advance of the UBCM Convention this fall.

At the February 25, 2025 Council Meeting, City Council approved the following resolution:

WHEREAS the Government of BC introduced the Housing Supply Act in 2023 and has since
required multiple “specified” municipalities to review and update their zoning bylaws by
December 31, 2025, to permit increased density in-line with government mandated housing
targets;

AND WHEREAS the increased housing density requirements for these specified municipalities
places undue financial pressure on those local governments due to the corresponding
infrastructure upscaling requirements;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Union of BC Municipalities work with the
Government of BC to establish and provide long-term, stable and predictable infrastructure
funding for municipalities to address these challenges.

We look forward to, and appreciate your support on this matter.

Sincerely,

(Prss Noomens

Ross Siemens
Mayor

c. Council members
Peter Sparanese, City Manager

Mayor’s Office 32315 South Fiaser Way, Abbolsford, BC. V2T 1W7 | 604.864.5500 | mayoisiemens@abbolsford.ca

abbotsford.ca



West Boundary Community Forest
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
Date: Feb 11, 2025
Time: 6:30 PM
Location: Village of Midway Council Chambers

Attendees: Guests:
e John Bolt, Chair s Judy Willsey, Councillor, Village of Midway
o  Heinz Kruezer, Director e  Doug McMynn, Mayor of Midway
e  Darren Metcalf, Director e Dean Trembley, CAO, City of Greenwood
e  Randy Trerise, Director e Denise Frocklage, WBCF Bookkeeper
e  Dan Macmaster, Forest Manager (non-voting) ¢ Owen Stewart, West Boundary resident

Peter Flett, Forest Manager (non-voting)

Elly Macmaster, Administrative and OEC Coordinator (non-voting
Absent:

Ginette Wheeler, Director

Welcome and Call to Order — Chair, John Bolt called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.

Adoption of the Agenda
o Moved by Heinz to adopt the agenda, seconded by Randy - Carried.

Approval of the November 5, 2024 Meeting Minutes

° Moved by Randy to approve the November meeting minutes; seconded by Heinz - Carried.

Correspondence:

U BCCFA newsletter — forwarded via email

] Thank you emails received from Greenwood Museum and Heritage Society, Kettle River Food Share

. West Boundary Senior’s Housing Society — requesting approval from WBCF regarding redirecting grant funding
towards another project

Finance Report: Dan Macmaster, Forest Manager

e Bookkeeping — Dan introduced Denise Frocklage, new WBCF bookkeeper
o Denise reported that she is familiarizing herself with the accounts and liaising with Dan regarding
organizing/updating procedures where needed
e Year End - in preparation for the audit, Dan contacted the auditor and informed them about the unexpected
passing of previous bookkeeper, Lia Thomas, and advised that Denise is the newly contracted bookkeeper for WBCF

Forest Managers’ Report: Dan Macmaster and Peter Flett

e See attached

OEC Coordinator’s Report: Elly Macmaster

e See attached

Old Business:
WBCF Block 9 USA/CAN Border fence update

e Heinz talked to Ross Elliott who reported that Rock Creek resident, Jamie Haynes is anticipating that fencing will
be needed along the border to the river; estimating that it will cost $10,000

s Still waiting on a definitive clarification of who is responsible for and coordinating the project before the board
can decide if/how much to contribute to the project



e Doug McMynn provided an update: Forests and Range Officer, Alisa Siemens was in communication with Doug
and clarified that this border fencing project falls under the responsibility of Forests and Range, and that they are
coordinating with Jamie Haynes about project requirements and funding

9. New Business:
e West Boundary Seniors Housing Society grant cheque:

o Board advises that WBSS may redirect the $1500 in grant funding to another project with the
understanding that WBSS updates the WBCF board how the grant funding is used

e Donation Request for Guns and Hoses Fundraiser:
o Doug McMynn advised that the planning committee is requesting sponsorship in the form of WBCF swag
ACTION: Elly to provide Doug with two of the following: WBCF sweatshirts, t-shirts, mugs, and hats
e  Spring Grant Intake and Bursary Dates:
o Heinz advised that exact grant intake dates will be determined after the audit

o Heinz reported that the bursary amount has been increased to $3000 to be awarded to two recipients
($3000 each); Heinz will contact BCSS regarding graduation dates and based on that information will
recommend bursary intake dates at the March meeting

ACTION: Heinz to email Elly the full bursary eligibility and requirements; Elly to update the website.

10. Announcements and Next Meeting:

e  Next WBCF Board Meeting — March 18, 2025 at 6:30PM in Greenwood

11. Open Questions:
e Dean Tremblay, CAO of Greenwood — Lynn Creek dam project; Dean will connect Dan with the stakeholders
e  Doug McMynn, Mayor of Midway — requested OEC shelter drawings for Midway bandshell ideas
e Randy Trerise — asked about native tree and shrub species in silviculture planning

e Owen Stewart, West Boundary resident and Green Peaks contractor — guestion regarding contract

12. Adjournment

e John moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:46PM.

Next Meeting: March 18, 2025, Greenwood Council Chambers

Minutes Prepared by: Elly Macmaster, Administrative and OEC Coordinator

Date prepared: February 11, 2025

John Bolt, Chair Elly Macmaster, Administrative Assistant



City of Greenwood

Boundary Metis Community Association is requesting the use of Barbara Daine
Ball Diamond for a Community Spring Equinox Event. This event will be open to
the community to celebrate spring.

We will be having games, a fire, hotdog roast with snack and beverages all free to
community.

We are planning the event for Saturday March 22, 2025 form 10:00 am to 3:00 pm
We would appreciate you consideration in this request.

Respectfully

Jo White
Program Coordinator
250 666 0284

boundarymetiscommunity@gmail.com



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD
LICENCE TO USE AND OCCUPY APPLICATION

{,"-E\\-"" i
.-5:
PO Box 129
202 S. Government Avenue
Greenwoced, BC VOH 1J0

Phone: 250-445-6644 Fax: 250-445-6441
Email: frontdesk.greenwoodcity@shaw.ca

APPLICANT’S INFORMATION:

Application Date: H';g({ Ul é A00R - -

Applicant’'s Name /

Company Name: Bounney METLS  CoMMUA) | T HSSeC IATION
Mailing Address: To Rex JAR1H e

Cyeaved Tovk< AL

VoH | HO

Primary Contact Person: Jdo Oh \‘“’6 é Cl/lNSH 3’) Q)
Telephone: A0 b 0AE4 _ASC 05 U
Email Address: bouidary dikes coMuun iy & gindil com
Applicant's Status: D Individual D Municipality D Company (attach Cert. of Incorporation)

[ Other. specify: -ggt“kh‘fth'gsﬁ (,[g._ayh?fs ‘,‘fa’/]- :

Charitable Registration #:

{if not for profit)

INTENDED USE OF LAND, BUILDING AND/OR IMPROVEMENTS

Proposed Term of Use: é.}{‘i; t_j ) E:%;d [OX @q}ﬂufl’ { \l_:‘!

(i.e.: years { months / days)

Start Date: oW1 4 o I fQ_ ) End Date: F‘O\f‘d"l 29 203§ A0 N
Civic Address (street):
Legal Description: Porbara Disne Ball F dfc)

(lot / block / ptan)

Property ldentification #s:
(PIDs)

Commonly known as:

(facility name)




THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD
LICENCE TO USE AND OCCUPY APPLICATION

Provide a detailed description of planned activities and/or anticipated construction:
Pog TR e I

Toon o
_OuT DooRrR S T
DOV N L Lﬂ

if changes to the property are proposed, please provide specific details about the
changes, including the equipment and materials that will be used:

Mo el ONLLI e DI %;LM“{»(/}

Describe all potential effects on adjacent landowners, the environment, or the local
area:

“ﬁfns. (Lvuh(_LS Ch,rnu J—Lu (‘ L/
0o d;s;@rc(—(

Please attach additional information, as required.

By signing this application form, the signee confirms that the information disclosed on this form is
accurate and complete. The signee warrants and represents that they have sufficient power,
authority, and capacity to sign on behalf of their company / corperation// community group.

Yo 1Ohife

Name (please print) Signatdre [

Date: t(&rg thi ag, 2 S




APPENDIX A
Licence of Use and QOccupy Application

SITE PLAN

M}t’w TS .

Please attach additional information as required.



